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-Indian/Colonial Point's Shameful Past

Wed, 01/30/2008 - 5:51pm — burtlakeband
The following is an article written by Record-Eagle staff writer, Mike Norton, dated August 20, 2000.

It should be noted: Norton states that after the Burnout, Burt Lake Band members moved to Cross Village. In
truth--most did not go to Cross Village but took up residence with nearby friends and family members. Most of
those who did travel to Cross Village, as Norton states, returned. Please see Burt Lake Band Tribal Historian,
Alice Littlefield's account in ""What Happened After the Burn Out?"

INDIAN/COLONIAL POINT'S SHAMEFUL PAST

Indian Point - This two-mile peninsula at the northwest corner of Burt Lake has been called by at least
two names. The old maps call it Indian Point, a name reflected on the road that runs along its eastern
shore. Other maps refer to it by the name it was given by the real estate developers - Colonial Point. And
that, too, seems fitting when you drive past the colony of summer homes along the water's edge, steering
around the well-tanned joggers and dog-walkers as you go.

From a historical perspective, both names are equally to the point. This place, once thoroughly Indian,
was forcibly colonized a century ago in one of the most shameful and least-publicized episodes in
Michigan history. There are no historical markers to tell the tale; only a series of unmarked white crosses
on a bluff above the water along Chickagami Road, decorated with artificial flowers and sprigs of cedar.

This is the old St. Mary's Cemetery, the only remaining sign of a village that served as the social, religious
and cultural center of the small Burt Lake Band of Ottawa and Chippewa Indians. These were no
"backward savages;" they were hard-working Catholics who farmed, fished, and drew paychecks as
lumberjacks and millwrights for local logging operations.

And this land was theirs, not by some vague aboriginal right or a promise from far-away Washington.
They had bought and paid for it themselves under the white man's own laws. In 1836, the federal
government had promised them a 1,000-acre reservation around Burt Lake; when it failed to deliver on
that promise, the Indians pooled their money and bought Indian Point for themselves, deeding much of it
to the state of Michigan in the belief that they were creating a tax-free reservation.

Until John Mc¢Ginn came along.

McGinn was a timber speculator with friends in high places, and he had his eye on the Point, Using
loopholes in the state's land acquisition laws, he "bought" the land at an illegal tax sale in 1900, and a few
days later - while most of the male villagers were in town getting their paychecks cashed - he moved in
with Cheboygan County Sheriff Fred Ming.

Herding the women and children out into the cold autumn rain, they doused their houses with kerosene,
set them on fire and ordered everyone off.

The homeless Indians walked 35 miles in the rain to the mission settlement at Cross Village, the closest
place where they could find shelter. Three years passed before the state admitted the land had been taken
from them through fraud, but it refused to restore their property; instead it offered them swampy
property that wasn't suitable for farming. Eventually some of them moved a few miles north, to Indian
Road, where a second St. Mary's Church was erected in 1908 around a settlement that came to be called
Indiantown.
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“Robbed of their land, the Burt Lake Band has been thwarted elsewhere, as well. Unlike other Michigan
tribes, the small 650-member community has no revenue-generating casinos or high-priced Washington
lobbyists. They've been fighting since the 1930s to win federal recognition for their existence as a tribe - a
goal that has consistently eluded them.

"We're still here," says [then] tribal director Gary Shawa. "We haven't gone away."

In the tribe's office, a turn-of-the-century storefront in nearby Brutus, Shawa speaks softly and carefully,
avoiding public comment where he can and choosing his words carefully when he can't. He and his fellow
community members must walk a delicate line among a host of state and federal agencies and other,
larger Indian tribes, and they can't afford to have their intentions misunderstood.

Sheriff Ming went on to become one of the area's big political success stories, enjoying a career in
Lansing as both a state representative and a state senator. McGinn was less fortunate; he never got to
chop down all the towering red oaks on what eventually became Colonial Point. In fact, it was one of the
few areas in the state where substantial logging never took place, and became a popular resort colony,

Then, in 1985, history tried to repeat itself. To the horror of the neighbors, a sawmill purchased the
forested interior of the little peninsula and announced plans to harvest the old-growth trees and ship
them off to Germany as laminate. This time, however, it was the local residents who had the better
political connections. They banded together with the Little Traverse Conservancy, the Michigan Chapter
of the Nature Conservancy, the University of Michigan and the state Natural Resources Trust Fund and
bought the land.

Now known as the Colonial Point Memorial Forest, the 300-acre interior has become something of a
poster child for the local land conservancy movement. Now part of the University of Michigan's
Biological Research Station, it's used for educational programs and low-impact forest ecosystems
research, but is open to anyone who wants to walk, jog or rest in its shadowy depths.



What Happened After the Burnout?

Thu, 01/31/2008 - 1:28pm — burtlakeband
By Alice Littlefield: Burt Lake Band Tribal Historian

Although several accounts of the 1900 Burnout of the Burt Lake Band at Indian Point mention that Burt Lake
families sought refuge in Cross Village, that information appears to be, at best, only partly true. The extensive
documentation collected by the team working on federal re-acknowledgment (Patty Marks, Barbara Madison,
Steve Austin, and me) has provided a more complete view of the Burnout and its aftermath. The narrative
submitted by the research team in May, 2005, provides this summary:

““... following the Burn Out many of the members of the Burt Lake Tribe moved from Colonial Point to Indian
Road and the surrounding area. Having no money and no place to live, they were granted housing on the
property of those tribal members who already resided on or near what they refer to as Indian Trail ... Local land
records show a number of homes being built on the Nongueskwa and Massey homesteads. ... The census and
other town[ship] documents also show that tribal members displaced by the Burn Out were allowed to camp and
eventually build on land owned by other tribal families who held title to property on Indian Road (“Social and
Political Relationships,” Narrative Notebook, p. 27).

This summary is based on newspaper accounts published soon after the Burnout, eye-witness accounts
published later, and interviews conducted with Burt Lake tribal members. Some of the most extensive
information was supplied by Irene Train Mosser, teacher at the Burt Lake Indian School in 1900, who recounted
her memories in the Petoskey News Review (Feb. 26, 1970):

“It was also in October that (Mr. McGinn) the new owner took over his property. One morning we arrived at
school to find the Indians’ household goods piled all over the school yard and several of the families making
their homes as best they could in tents and crowded in with the one family which lived in a house near the
school. ... The new owner’s henchmen, led by the County Sheriff, had driven the Indians out of their homes on
the Point, set their possessions outside, poured kerosene on the floors and burned down the houses. Only the
Jhurch had been spared ...

“One little Indian pupil, who was crippled, was carried to school each day by her old, grizzled grandfather.
When she failed to come for several days, some of the pupils accompanied me one noon to visit her, We found
her ill in her home ... a one-room hut ... so dark and noisey with crowded living. We were shocked to see
anyone existing in such quarters.”

The movement to Indian Road is also described in an account of the history of St. Mary’s Church published in a
pamphlet issued on the 75th anniversary of the St. Clement Church in Pellston: “The present location of the
Indians resulted after the Indians had been dispossessed of reservation rights on Indian Point. ... In 1900, white
men forcibly moved the Indians and their belongings out on the road and set fire to their homes. Twenty-five
Indian families were left homeless. With no place to go, the Indians moved out to ‘Indian Road’.” Interviews
with Margaret Nongueskwa Martell conducted in recent years confirm that several burned out families were
taken in by the Nongueskwas and allowed to build houses on their land. This is also indicated by census data
collected in 1910 and 1920.

It is also clear that at least some families left the Burt Lake area. In The Crooked Tree: Indian Legends,
published by John C. Wright in 1917, a photograph is included of “Negonee, 106 years old” with this caption:
“This aged woman walked from the Indian village at Burt Lake, when it was burned by order of the sheriff, to
Middle Village, where she soon after died.” We do not know if the age Wright attributed to Negonee was
accurate, but the information about her was repeated in a later publication, The Pageant of Tuscarora, with a
different photograph of her.



In contrast to the tale of Negonee, The Pageant also includes a photograph of the Joseph Parkey family, taken in
front of their house in 1904. According to the caption, the house had been dismantled and moved to land nearby
prior to the burning of the village (Robert C. Sager, 1975). This information has been confirmed by Joseph
Parkey’s descendants.

The idea that all residents of the village left the Burt Lake area was propagated by later, sometimes fanciful,
accounts. For example, a Detroit Sunday Times article from March 11, 1956, imagines that “The reservation
dwellers drifted, penniless wanderers, to the four corners of the state.” The Petoskey News-Review stated:
“Homeless, stripped of their lands and possessions, the Indians migrated elsewhere in a state now all owned by
the white man” (March 13, 1956). A radio news story the same year indicated that the Burt Lake Indians moved
to the Harbor Springs vicinity, citing Mose Gibson and Jim Needo, neither of them members of the Burt Lake
Band, as their sources (WCBY, Cheboygan, March 15, 1956).

In 1981, the Cheboygan Observer wrote, “Some of the Indians walked to Cross Village, 30 miles away. But
others moved a few miles and started another settlement. ... Some of the descendants still have homes at the
new site, called ‘Indianville’ on the county map” (Dec. 21). Although this account correctly described the
movement to nearby Indian Road, it mentioned Cross Village rather than Middle Village as a destination for
some families. Two later articles by Simon Otto repeated the Cross Village story, but without indicating the
source of the information (Petoskey News-Review, July 27, 1992; Cheboygan Daily Tribune, May 10, 1993).
The second article by Otto incorrectly stated that the Burnout occurred in 1890.

The Cross Village version of the story was reproduced in the October Burt Lake Band Newsletter, without any
mention of the relocation of families to Indian Road. The inconsistencies in the newspaper stories described
above are typical of accounts that appear many years after an event, and indicate why historians try to find
documentation as close to the date of the event as possible, from persons who had an opportunity to observe
what went on first-hand. An effort is then made to find confirmation from several independent sources. This
process has led the research team to conclude that although some families may have sought refuge in Middle
Village, Harbor Springs, or Cross Village, the core of the community was reconstituted on Indian Road, where
the Burt Lake Indian village thrived for several more decades.

26 October 2005
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ARTICLE BY LYNN DeELoucHARY ST. ARNAUD
PHOTOS BY LARRY TRACY JR.

ummer brought a deep, dark richness to the forest as canopied
| leaves greedily embraced the sunlight, allowing very little to
reach the understory. From the wooded trail, the trees flanked
me like an army of titans; hardwood ranks fallen out of step until in
the confusion the forms blended into darkness. A sea of ferns and
small seedlings rippled in the breeze. Tender saplings waited patiently
for an opening in the canopy, ready to race to the sky when the
chance came. Somewhat hidden by the lush foliage were a multitude
of mushrooms, as vibrant as any sunset. The silent unmoving fungi,
in a brilliant array of oranges and yellows, rivaled any autumnal
display the colossal trees surrounding them could produce. This was
Colonial Point, a 297-acre stand of mature hardwoods located on a
peninsula jutting out into Burt Lake.

Hardwoods—like those of Colonial Point—are common in the
northern part of Michigan’s Lower Peninsula, but what sets Colonial
Point apart is its history, the events in the life of this forest that beat
back the stages of succession, fire, disease and the axe. By luck or by
fate, Colonial Point’s hardwoods escaped the events that stop most
northern forests from reaching the old growth stage.

When Colonial Point became threatened by the logger’s axe several
years ago, Wendy O'Neil of the Nature Conservancy in Lansing
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This was his home, after all, and also
home to many other mammals and
birds who had no way of knowing
how close they had come to being
evicted, just as native Americans had
been nearly a century ago.

1 first saw the forest on Colonial
Point in winter. The snow-covered
road had been packed to a steady
roughness, its ruts teasing the tires
of our truck this way and that way.
The maples lining the narrow gravel
road canopied the passage with inter-
twined branches high above. As Larry
eased the truck to the shoulder of the
road and stopped, Jamie and I looked
around quizzically.

“This is it?” we asked in unison,
doubting we had found the place.

Ignoring our question, Larry scanned
the slightly overcast sky and his face
broke into a nature photographer’s
smile. “The light is perfect,” he said,
“and there’s no wind.”

In a clearing on our right was a
snow-burdened wooden sign. This was
indeed the place. As Larry unloaded
his photo gear, Jamie and I put on
cross-country skis and started down a
trail. 1 fell into the rhythm of skiing—
kick, glide, kick, glide—listening to
the repetitive crunch and whoosh of
skis on snow. Looking back, 1 saw that
Jamie and 1 were in synchronized
motion. Larry was trudging far behind
us, tripod balanced casually over his
right shoulder, his eyes sweeping the
forest for the scenes photographers
seek. Suddenly he peered to his left,
then stopped. Is that it? No. He took
a backward step, then another. There
it is! In one flowing motion, he swung
his tripod from his shoulder and
extended its legs.

1 stepped off the trail, sinking
into deep white powder, shuffling
determinedly toward the closest tree.
Once there, | examined the blue
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Even in winter,

we encountered many signs
of animals and birds

markings on its bark, slowly realizing
that 1 stood at the foot of a giant.

Looking straight up 1 could see
its immense trunk give way to an
entanglement of branches like a
multitude of crooked fingers that
touched the sky. I shrank away in
awe. The blue spray paint on the
trunk was a reminder of the death
sentence this red oak faced. Although
it probably was one hundred to one
hundred-fifty years old, this tree might
stand another two hundred.
Blanketing, shimmering snow
illuminated the forest floor, giving off
its own light. We encountered many
signs of wildlife. A seldom-used deer
path intersected our trail. The tiny
tracks of a red squirrel marked its
journey from one tree trunk to
another. A chickadee sang cheerily.
Jamie pointed out several white pine
deeply pitted as if carved out for a small
den. “What kind of animal lives there?”
“That was done by a pileated wood-
pecker,” Larry explained, stepping off
the trail for a better view. “They eat

Above, the sign at the
entrance pays tribute to the
late Gustav A. and Margarite
E. Olofsson of Lansing. As a
living memorial to their
parents, the surviving family
made a large donation that
helped purchase the forest.
Right, two cross-country
skiers enjoy one of the many
trails. At far right, a male
evening grosbeak.

the insects in dead and dying trees.”
As if on cue came a resonant rat-rat-tat
in the distance.

On another day, a cold, windy day in
May, the forest floor was beginning to
flaunt the green of new life. Bob Vande
Kopple of the University of Michigan
Biological Station teased us about
dragging him out on such a day. Pulling
my hat snugly down over my ears, I fell
in step beside Bob and photograrhter
Larry as they discussed the histc  f
Colonial Point. '

The forest floor shimmered with.

Michigan Natural Resources
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In spring, the forest
floor shimmered with numerous
varieties of wildflowers

Above, perhaps no flower is
so suggestive of spring as
the violet. Right, these red
pine cones will mature by
autumn of their second
season. At left, the large
leaves of the white trillium,
the showiest and best known
trillium in the world.

inland waterway stretching from Lake
Huron at Cheboygan on the east side
of the state to Crooked Lake near
Petoskey on the west. At Crooked
Lake the Indians would then portage
their canoes the short distance to
Lake Michigan. This inland waterway
was an important trade route for the
Indian culture.

In 1855, the Treaty of Detroit altered
the tax status of the land. The Indians,
who claimed to be unaware of the
change, did not pay the assessed taxes
and ownership reverted to the state,
which then sold the land to white
settlers. The new owners did not
physically take possession of the land

Summer, 1991

immediately but waited until 1898,
then petitioned the court for assistance
in removing the Indians. On the
evening of October 15, 1900, the sheriff
set fire to the Indians’ village and
church, thus evicting them.

In 1946 and 1947 the Michigan
Maple Block Company made a select
cutting of mature sugar maple, which
opened the canopy for growth of other
northern hardwoods such as beech and
red maple. The presence of many red
oak stumps suggests that a fairly
intensive select cut of oak was also
made in the 1940s. In 1984 the land was
purchased by Devereaux Sawmill and
the following spring three large
red oaks were removed to check for
wood quality and value. The plan was
to log off the red oak for veneer, then
subdivide and develop the property.

Bob veered off the trail and led us
to a broad stump. I knelt on top of
it to examine its rings, feeling the
coarseness from a recent logger's
blade. Bending over, Bob pointed out
a few good vears of rapid growth,

followed by lean years where the rings
nearly touched. One section evidenced
damage, possibly by fire. The tree’s
life story was written in those rings.

Across the country forests are being
harvested, and through proper refor-
estation efforts new trees take their
place. However, many years must pass
before such a new forest develops the
attributes of an old growth forest lost
to fire, wind, disease or harvest,
Scientists from the University of
Michigan Biological Station have been
researching the Colonial Point habitat
for more than 70 years. This long-term
data base tells them a great deal about
what happens in the life of a forest
and how those happenings affect Earth
and its atmosphere.

Colonial Point has been designar
by the United Nations as an inte.
national biosphere reserve, for research
and environmental studies. The area
thus will serve as a living laboratory
for old growth hardwoods. The intent
of the International Biosphere Reserve
program is to study the earth’s natural
resources at an international and
interdisciplinary scientific level. The
hope is to compile the scientific
knowledge and skills to use natural
resources in a manner which will allow
the conservation of biological diversity
on a global scale. Biosphere Reserves
are not just another category of
protected area. With imagination and
conviction, they offer a beginning to
truly integrating scientific research,
conservation and society.

When winter comes, the leaves again
will fall to add a replenishing layer
of nutrients to the forest floor. As it
has for centuries, Colonial Point will
lie silently beneath a snowy comforter
as yet another cycle passes. Thanb-
to the foresight, support and hard we
of many, this is one old growth forest
that will see many more seasons. O

1 I
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SUNDAY SCHOOL ABOUT 1888 or 1889

Barefoot girls in front row: Ena and Ruth Wyrick, Hope Faunce and Eunice Stone.
Mr. Al Wyrick in front of women. Bert Wyrick with hat in hand. Elmer McMichael
back row in front of door, and Ira Wyrick in front of him. Clara Dice in white

dress - second row.

BURT LAKE CHRISTIAN CHURCH

The exact date of the beginning of our
church history is unknown. The earliest refer-
ence to Christian activity in the area is of a
Sunday School picnic held on July 4th, 1889, in
‘‘dense wood directly west of Sager’s forty.”’
However the first organized Christian movement
seems to have started about 1894 or 1895 when a
young missionary named George Weaver, who
had come to Petoskey in 1891, visited homes in
the area and organized a Sunday School which at
first was held in the Ezra Faunce home.

Calvin Dice, Mrs. Clara Rotter’s father,
moved a building to a position on the hill south
of the present church and across from his home,
to be used for a school. When the attendance at
the Sunday School became too large to be
accommodated in the Faunce home, the meet-
ings were moved to the school building.

In 1896, Elders Drew and Long from Petoskey
held a revival meeting at which many new
members were added. Very soon the people
were desirous of building a place of worship.
Mr. Arthur Willett of the Petoskey church
helped in an organizational meeting.

Quoting from the recollections of Mary C.
McMichael Thomas:
The day that we organized there
were present thirteen adults and
several children.

The church was to be a Union Church as the
eighty three charter members represented
many denominations.

The first requirement was for a piece of
land on which to build. In July of 1899, Mr.
Arthur Freyer obtained a parcel of land (the
original title of which was a patent dated August
29, 1895, given to an Indian chief named Joseph
Kechegowe, by the U.S. government). In
September of the same year he gave a warantee
deed of one acre of ground to be used for the
building of a church. The deed read:

Arthur Freyer and wife Flora to the
Trustees of the First Christian
Church or Church of Christ at

Burt Lake - 1 acre of land in the
N.W. corner of N.W. of S.W. of
Sec. 8, 735 N Range 3 West running
10 rods on the E & W V4 line of said
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THE INDIAN BURIAL GROUND |5 ALL THAT REMAINS dETH
CLD (NPDIAN VILLAGE _ THE CATHOLIC CHURCH WHICH WAS
LOCATED ACROSS THE ROAD IS STILL STANDING BUT S
USED AS A STORAGE BUILDING . MANY ATTRACTIVE
AND EXPENSIVE SUMMER HOMES HAVE BEEN (CoNSTRUCT
ALONG THE SHORE O0fF MAPLE BAY. THERE |5 A CATHoLK

CHURCH AND CEMETZRY ABGUT & MILES FROM THE SHORI
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REMEMBER THE EVENTS WHICH FOLLOWET, HE WAS BORN
AMD RAISED iN THE BRUTUS AREA AND LIVED IN THE OLP

Me GINN BROME FOR MANY YEARRS.
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